
 
 

 
 

Meeting: Richmond (Yorks) Area Planning Committee 

Members: Councillors Kevin Foster, David Hugill, 
Heather Moorhouse (Vice-Chair), Karin Sedgwick, 
Angus Thompson, Steve Watson and 
David Webster (Chair)  

Date: Wednesday, 15 January 2025 

Time: 10.00 am 

Venue: The Grand Meeting Room, County Hall, Northallerton, DL7 
8AD 

Members of the public are entitled to attend this meeting as observers for all those items taken in 
open session. Please contact the named democratic services officer supporting this committee if 
you have any queries. Recording is allowed at Council, committee and sub-committee meetings 
which are open to the public. Please give due regard to the Council’s protocol on audio/visual 
recording and photography at public meetings. Anyone wishing to record is asked to contact, prior 
to the start of the meeting, the named democratic services officer supporting this committee. We 
ask that any recording is clearly visible to anyone at the meeting and that it is non-disruptive.  
 
The Council operates a scheme for public speaking at planning committee meetings. Normally the 
following people can speak at planning committee in relation to any specific application on the 
agenda:  
A speaker representing the applicant,  
A speaker representing the objectors/supporters,  
A Parish Council representative,  
The local Division councillor.  
Each speaker has a maximum of three minutes to put their case. If you wish to register to speak 
through this scheme, then please notify Stephen Loach of Democratic Services by midday on 
Friday 10 January 2025. If you are exercising your right to speak at this meeting, but do not wish to 
be recorded, please inform the Chairman who will instruct anyone who may be taking a recording 
to cease while you speak. 

  
This meeting is being held as an in-person meeting that is being broadcasted and will be 
available to view via the following link Live meetings | North Yorkshire Council.  Please 
contact the named democratic services officer supporting this committee if you would like 
to find out more. 
 
Please contact the named democratic services officer supporting this committee if you would like 
to find out more. You may also be interested in subscribing to updates about this or any other 
North Yorkshire Council committees – Logon | North Yorkshire Council 
 
 
 

 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

https://www.northyorks.gov.uk/your-council/councillors-committees-and-meetings/live-meetings


 
 

 

Agenda 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence 
 

 

2.   Minutes for the Meeting held on 12 December 2024 
 

(Pages 3 - 8) 

3.   Declarations of Interests  
  

All Members are invited to declare at this point any interests, including the nature 
of those interests, or lobbying in respect of any items appearing on this agenda. 
 

4.   ZB24/02074/FUL - Planning application for the construction 
of garaging with first floor office/games room/gym 
accommodation within the curtilage of a dwelling named 
May-Zac located at the eastern end of Well on the north side 
of Church Street. 

(Pages 9 - 20) 

  
 

4(a)   Update report for agenda item 4 - Well 
 

(Pages 21 - 
24) 

5.   Such other business as, in the opinion of the Chair should 
be, by reason of special circumstances, considered as a 
matter of urgency. 

 

  
6.   Date of Next Meeting  
  

10.00am, Thursday, 13 February 2025 - venue to be confirmed 
 
Members are reminded that in order to expedite business at the meeting and enable Officers 
to adapt their presentations to address areas causing difficulty, they are encouraged to 
contact Officers prior to the meeting with questions on technical issues in reports. 
 
Agenda Contact Officer: 
 
Stephen Loach, Principal Democratic Services Officer 
Tel: 01609 532216 
Email: stephen.loach@northyorks.gov.uk 
 
Tuesday, 7 January 2025 

Page 2



 
 

North Yorkshire Council 
 

Richmond (Yorks) Area Planning Committee 
 
Minutes of the meeting held on Thursday, 12 December 2024 commencing at 10.00 am. 
 
Councillor David Webster in the Chair, plus Councillors David Hugill, Heather Moorhouse, 
Karin Sedgwick, Steve Watson and Kevin Foster. 
 
Officers present: Fiona Hunter, Development Management Team Manager, Ian Nesbit, Principal 

Planning Officer, Liam Timmins, Career Grade Planning Officer, Frances 
Maxwell, Solicitor (Planning and Environment); and Dawn Drury, Democratic 
Services Officer. 

 
Apologies: Councillor Angus Thompson. 

 

 
Copies of all documents considered are in the Minute Book 

 

 
154 Apologies for Absence 

 
Apologies noted (see above). 
 
 

155 Minutes for the Meeting held on 14 November 2024 
 
Members considered the minutes of the Planning Committee meeting held on 14 
November 2024 contained within the agenda pack, along with the proposed amendments 
to the minutes which had been circulated to all Members.  
 
The following amendments to the minutes were proposed:  
 
In relation to minute number 149 - ZD24/00397/FULL - Dalton Woods, Dalton on Tees, 
DL2 2NR. 
 
At Paragraph 6, remove “Justine Matchfield (Lichfields) on behalf of her client Sara-Jane 

Burns spoke in opposition to the application.” and replace with “Justine Matchett 

(Lichfields) on behalf of her client Sarah-Jane Burns spoke in opposition to the 

application.” 

Bullet point 5 to be removed as it was not relevant to the application. 

Remove reasons for refusal 3 and 4 and replace with:- 

3.  The development was in proximity to an Ancient Scheduled Monument of a 

medieval settlement of Dalton upon Tees and associated field system; and which may 

have also been a former Roman fort or matching camp.  Historical activity and thus 

underground heritage assets were likely to have extended beyond the limits of the 

medieval settlement.  The physical drainage works, and operational phase of the new 

drainage system may impact on the woodland slope where it was sited within including 

land stability.  Insufficient information had been provided to demonstrate the slope stability 

would not be affected, and thus any below ground heritage assets had not been and would 

not be in the future affected by the development.  Furthermore, with the site in proximity to 

Public Document Pack

Page 1Page 3

Agenda Item 2



 
 

a Scheduled Monument no archaeological assessment had taken place to assess if the 

works had a presence or absence of archaeological material.  A potential less than 

substantial harm on the heritage asset could not be ruled out.  No public benefits had been 

presented that outweighed the harm caused and subsequently it was considered that the 

development was contrary to Policy CP12 of the Richmondshire Local Plan 2012- 2028 

Core Strategy adopted 2014 and paragraphs 200 and 208 of the National Planning Policy 

Framework 2023. 

4.  The new larger pipe may speed up water travelling from the top of woodland slope 

to the bottom where the river tees was located and which was a flood zone 2 and 3.  No 

Drainage Strategy or Flood Risk Assessment had been provided to demonstrate the 

development would not increase flooding off site in conflict with Policy CP12 of the 

Richmondshire Local Plan 2012-2028 Core Strategy adopted 2014 and paragraph 173 of 

National Planning Policy Framework 2023. 

In relation to minute number 150 - 21/00791/FULL - Dalton Woods, Dalton on Tees, DL2 

2NR. 

At Paragraph 6, remove “Justine Matchfield (Lichfields) on behalf of her client Sara-Jane 

Burns spoke in opposition to the application.” and replace with “Justine Matchett 

(Lichfields) on behalf of her client Sarah-Jane Burns spoke in opposition to the 

application.” 

For the resolution, remove “MINDED TO” and “with delegated powers to the Head of 

Development Management to update the below reason for refusal if Historic England 

comments were received by 4th December 2024:” 

It was proposed, seconded and a vote taken. 
 
Resolved:  
 
To approve the minutes of the Planning Committee meeting held on 14 November 2024 for 
signing by the Chairman, subject to the amendments detailed above. 
 
 

156 Declarations of Interests 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
Planning Applications  
 
The Committee considered reports of the Assistant Director Planning – Community 
Development Services relating to applications for planning permission.  During the 
meeting, Officers referred to additional information and representations which had been 
received. 
 
Except where an alternative condition was contained in the report or an amendment made 
by the Committee, the conditions as set out in the report and the appropriate time limit 
conditions were to be attached in accordance with the relevant provisions of Section 91 
and 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
 
In considering the reports of the Assistant Director Planning – Community Development 
Services, regard had been paid to the policies of the relevant development plan, the 
National Planning Policy Framework and all other material planning considerations.  
Where the Committee deferred the consideration of planning permission the reasons for 
that decision were as shown in the report or as set out below.   

Page 2Page 4



 
 

 
Where the Committee granted planning permission in accordance with the 
recommendation in a report this was because the proposal was in accordance with the 
development plan, the National Planning Policy Framework or other material 
considerations as set out in the report unless otherwise specified below. 
   
 

157 ZB23/01580/MRC - Modification of condition 9 (landscaping) and 20 (occupancy) 
from previously approved application 16/02048/FUL - Change of use of land to 
holiday lodge park (54 Lodges) with associated reception building, solar farm, 
landscaping and amenity ponds, together with formation and alteration of highway 
access and internal roads and associated car parking (As Amended: Proposed 
Layout Plan and Pitch Break Plan [November 2024] and Habitat Management and 
Monitoring Plan received on 22.11.2024) -  Angrove Park, Winley Hill, Great Ayton, 
North Yorkshire, TS9 6QA. 
 
The Assistant Director Planning – Community Development Services sought determination 
of a (as amended) ‘variation of condition’ (Section 73) application to vary conditions 9 
(landscaping) and 20 (occupancy) of previous planning permission (ref.16/02048/FUL) in 
order to facilitate proposed amendments to the approved landscaping scheme and to 
accommodate 35 additional lodges within Angrove Country Park, Winley Hill, Great Ayton, 
North Yorkshire, TS9 6QA. 
 
The application had been referred to the Committee at the request of the Divisional 
Member. 
 
The Principal Planning Officer highlighted the Officer Update Note which had been 
circulated to Members and published onto the Council website at item 4a of the agenda 
pack and explained that the original officer recommendation had been minded to grant the 
application subject to conditions.  Since publication of the agenda pack on the 4 December 
2024, officers had received advice from the Council Solicitor (for Planning & Environment) 
which raised a concern in relation to the appropriateness of a ‘Section 73’ 
(variation/removal of condition(s)) application to amend the original planning permission 
(ref. 16/02048/FUL) as was currently proposed. 
 
Therefore, officers respectfully requested that Members agree to a deferral of the 
application. This would allow officers time to consider the application further following 
advice. 
 
The decision:-  
 
That the planning application be DEFERRED for the following reason: 
 

 To allow officers time to consider the advice received from the Council Solicitor (for 
Planning & Environment) regarding the appropriateness of a ‘Section 73’ 
(variation/removal of condition(s)) application to amend the original planning 
permission (ref. 16/02048/FUL) as was currently proposed. 
 

Voting record:-  
 
A vote was taken, and the motion was carried unanimously. 
 
 

158 ZD23/00665/OUT - Outline Planning Permission with all matters reserved for 
proposed Residential Development (up to 55 dwellings) - Land At St Alkeldas Road, 
Middleham, North Yorkshire 

Page 3Page 5



 
 

 
The Assistant Director Planning – Community Development Services sought determination 
of an application for outline planning (with all matters reserved except access) for a 
proposed residential development for up to 55 dwellings on land at St Alkeldas Road, 
Middleham, North Yorkshire. 
 
The application had been referred to the committee as it raised significant material 
planning considerations as affordable housing was proposed lower than the Policy 
requirement. 
 
The Planning Officer highlighted the Officer Update Note which had been circulated to 
Members and published onto the Council website at item 5a of the agenda pack.  The 
update note contained a number of corrections to the original report contained within the 
pack.   
 
The Development Management Team Manager informed Members that the Ministry for 
Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) were due to publish a revised 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) by mid-day today, 12 December 2024.  
Therefore, as the application required the completion of a S106 agreement for affordable 
housing and public open space, were it to be approved by the Committee today, Members 
were asked to consider a revision to the officer’s original recommendation to grant the 
application contained within the agenda pack, to a minded to grant.  It was explained that 
this would allow officers the time to consider any possible implications from the revised 
NPPF, and the effect the new policies may have in the future. 
 
Graham Scotchburn Snell spoke objecting to the application. 
 
The Democratic Services Officer read out a statement on behalf of Middleham Town 
Council, in support of the application. 
 
The applicant’s agent, Gary Hoerty, spoke in support of the application. 
 
During consideration of the above application, the Committee discussed the following 
issues:-  
 

• It was queried if the Committee could add a condition to the application which 
would allow people with a local connection to the area to be able to purchase the 
properties in the first instance, before being offered more widely. 
• The local Member stated that she had been approached by local residents who 
had concerns regarding possible flooding, she thanked officers for the additional 
information provided and hoped that this would allay residents’ fears. 
• Members requested clarification on the market mix of properties. 
• One Member stated that they had found the site visit very useful; that the 
buildings would fit in visually, and they had been impressed with the layout of the 
site. 
• It was queried if there were mitigations in place to prevent possible flooding from 
Low Moor.  
• What was the justification for reducing the affordable housing from 40% to 30%, 
and if Members could insist on a higher percentage of affordable housing on the 
site. 

 
Members were minded to grant the planning application and agreed to delegate the 
decision to officers in conjunction with the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Planning 
Committee. 
 
The decision:-  

Page 4Page 6



 
 

 
That Members were MINDED TO GRANT with the decision delegated to the Head of 
Development Management in conjunction with the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Planning 
Committee subject to the conditions listed at section 12 of the Committee report, and the 
Officer Update Note; along with the prior completion of a S106 agreement for affordable 
housing and public open space.  
 
Voting record:-  
 
A vote was taken, and the motion was carried unanimously. 
 
 

159 Such other business as, in the opinion of the Chair should be, by reason of special 
circumstances, considered as a matter of urgency. 
 
There were no urgent items of business. 
 
 

160 Date of Next Meeting 
 
Wednesday, 15 January 2025 at 10.00am at a venue to be confirmed. 
 
 
 

The meeting concluded at 10.44 am. 

Page 5Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



 

North Yorkshire Council 

 
Community Development Services 

 
Richmond (Yorks) Area Planning Committee 

 
15th January 2025 

 
 ZB24/02074/FUL- New one and half storey traditionally built building for ground 

floor garaging and first floor office and games room/gym. 
 

At: May-Zac, Church Street, Well 
 

On Behalf Of: Mr Tom Dunnington 
  

Report Of The Assistant Director Planning– Community Development Services 
 

1.0  PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

1.1    To determine a planning application for the construction of garaging with first floor 
office/games room/gym accommodation within the curtilage of a dwelling named May-
Zac located at the eastern end of Well on the north side of Church Street. 

1.2    This application is brought to the Planning Committee at the request of A Member of 
the Council. 

 
2.0 SUMMARY 

 

2.1 RECOMMENDATION: That planning permission be REFUSED on the basis of the reasons 
set out in Section 12 of this report. 

 

2.2 The proposed development comprises the construction of garaging/builder's storage with 

first floor office and games room/gym accommodation within the curtilage of a dwelling 

named May-Zac located at the eastern end of Well on the north side of Church Street. 

 

2.3 This application is the third proposal received in recent years for the construction of a 

building within the curtilage.  A recently refused application (ref no. ZB24/00627/FUL) is 

currently the subject of an appeal (Planning Inspectorate ref no. APP/U2750/W/24/3352390) 

and a decision by the Planning Inspectorate is anticipated in January 2025. 

 

2.4      This revised proposal involves the construction of a detached 1 ½ storey range located on 

the eastern extent of the curtilage adjacent to the watercourse.  The proposal would be 

7.5m x 20m in dimension to provide a 150 sqm footprint (gross external area). The 

submitted plans indicate the ground floor would provide 5 garage bays divided into two 

parts, with two bays to provide building plant and tool storage and 3 bays to provide 

garaging and domestic storage.  The first floor would provide c.52 sqm (gross internal area) 

of office space and c.77 sqm (gross internal area) of games room/home gym space. Both of 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



 

the first floor areas would be accessed via independent external steps located at the north 

and south gable ends of the proposed building. 

 

2.5      Given the previous site history, reference to the principle of development in this location 

together with the quantum of floorspace proposed and the resultant layout, scale, form and 

appearance of the proposed development are the key considerations. 

 

3.0   PRELIMINARY MATTERS 

3.1 Access to the application documents (via Public Access) can be found here:- 

Planning Documents 

 

3.2 The following relevant planning history has been identified for the application site: 

 

Page 10

https://documents.hambleton.gov.uk/PublicAccess_LIVE/SearchResult/RunThirdPartySearch?FileSystemId=DC&FOLDER1_REF=ZB24/02074/FUL


 

3.3 16/02527/OUT - Outline application for the construction of a detached dwelling (all matters 

reserved). Approved. 

 

3.4     17/01994/REM - Application for approval of all reserved matters (access, appearance, 

landscaping, layout and scale) following Outline Approval for Application 16/02527/OUT 

(Construction of detached dwelling). Approved. 

 

3.5 19/01218/FUL - Construction of a detached garage (with first floor games room) and 

provision of piers and wall adjacent to access (retaining most of hedgerow).  Approved. 

 

3.6 20/00906/FUL - Application for the construction of a detached domestic covered storage 

building.  Refused with the following reasons for refusal: 

 

1. The proposed development is considered to result in a contrived development form 

which will have a harmful impact on the character and appearance of the settlement of 

Well by resulting in a loss of open space and sense of spaciousness that contributes 

positively to the character and visual amenity of the area and will result in a harmful 

impact on the character of the countryside surrounding the village. The proposed 

development is considered to fail to meet the requirements of the Council's Interim 

Policy Guidance along with Development Policies DP10, DP30 and DP32 and the 

National Planning Policy Framework. 

 

2. The proposed development is considered inappropriate in the context of the Flood Zone 

3 designation at this location. The proposed development would also impact on water 

attenuation measures approved within the development site. The proposed 

development is therefore Contrary to Development Policy DP43 and the National 

Planning Policy Framework. 

 

3.7 21/02806/FUL - Proposed change of use of existing domestic garage to holiday let.  

Approved.  

 

3.8 ZB24/00627/FUL - Construction of a garage, office and annexe accommodation.  Refused 

for the following reasons: 

 

1. The development of the application site would result in the loss of openness and visual 

amenity that is considered important to the character and appearance of this part of the 

village and would therefore fail the requirements of Local Plan policies E1 parts (a), (b) 

and (c) and E7 parts (b) and (e). 

 

2. The quantum of floorspace proposed together with the siting, scale, form and 

appearance of the building would appear incongruous within the context and would 

therefore fail the requirements of Local Plan policy E1 parts (a), (b), (c), (l), (m) and (p). 

 

3.9 This refused application currently the subject of an appeal (ref no. 

APP/U2750/W/24/3352390). The LPA has provided a Statement of Case in response to the 

Page 11



 

submission of the appeal and the Appellant has provided a further response to the LPA’s 

comments in November 2024.  A decision on the appeal is anticipated to be made by the 

Planning Inspectorate in January 2025.  

 

4.0 SITE AND SURROUNDINGS 

 

4.1 The site lies at the east end of Well on the north side of Church Street, beyond the 

boundary of the Well Conservation Area. The site is occupied by a two storey, five 

bedroomed dwelling. The eastern side of the curtilage, closest to the beck, lies within Flood 

Zones 2 and 3, which are the areas of highest flood risk.  In recent years planning 

permission was also granted for the change the use of the garage block to a holiday let 

comprising two bedrooms, bathroom and kitchen/living area.  Access to the property is via a 

gated entrance from Church Street to the east of the dwelling.  Overhead cables cross the 

site in north/south direction over the vehicle entrance.   

 

4.2 The site is bounded by the road to the south; by the dwelling known as The Old Byre to the 

west; by the watercourse to the east; and agricultural land to the north. The village play 

area lies on the opposite side of the road to the south.  Planning permission has recently 

been granted for the construction of a two storey dwelling on the east side of the beck (ref 

no. ZB23/00822/FUL) and this is currently under construction. 

4.3 Short distance views to the application site are possible along Church Street and longer 

distance views are possible from the surrounding highway network and public footpaths in 

the vicinity.  

 

5.0 DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL 

 

5.1 In June 2024 planning permission was refused for the Construction of an L-shaped garage, 

office and annexe accommodation block (ref no. ZB24/00627/FUL).  As noted above this is 

currently the subject of an appeal with a decision expected in January 2025 appeal ref no. 

APP/U2750/W/24/3352390). 

 

5.2 During the course of the application the description of the development was amended to 

reflect the submitted drawings.  This revised application proposes a single 1 ½ storey range 

located on the eastern edge of the complex adjacent to the watercourse. The proposal 

would be 7.5m x 20m in dimensions to provide a 150 sqm footprint (gross external area). 

The submitted plans indicate the ground floor would provide 5 garage bays divided into two 

parts, with 2 bays for building plant and tool storage and 3 bays to provide garaging and 

domestic storage.  The first floor would provide c.52 sqm (gross internal area) of office 

space and c.77 sqm (gross internal area) of games room/home gym space. Both of the first 

floor areas would be accessed via independent external steps located at the north and 

south gable ends of the proposed building. 

 
6.0 PLANNING POLICY AND GUIDANCE 

 

Page 12



 

6.1 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that all planning 

authorities must determine each application under the Planning Acts in accordance with 

Development Plan so far as material to the application unless material considerations 

indicate otherwise. 

 

Adopted Development Plan  

6.2 The Adopted Development Plan for this site is: 

Hambleton Local Plan, February 2022 

 

Emerging Development Plan – Material Consideration  

 

6.3      The North Yorkshire Local Plan is the emerging development plan for this site though no 

weight can be applied in respect of this document at the current time as it is at an early 

stage of preparation. 

 

Guidance - Material Considerations 

6.4 Relevant guidance for this application is: 

 - National Planning Policy Framework 2023 (NPPF) 

 - National Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) 

 - National Design Guide 2021 (NDG) 

  

7.0 CONSULTATION RESPONSES 

 

7.1 The following consultation responses have been received and have been summarised 

below: 

 

7.2 Well Parish Council – No response received (expired 29.11.2024). 

 

7.3 Environment Agency – Note the comments from their previous response (to refused 

application ZB24/00627/FUL) still stand and therefore have nothing further to add.  

For completeness their previous comments are noted below: 

 

We have no objection to the proposal, provided it is built in accordance with the submitted 

FRA. However, we strongly advise that flood proofing measures are incorporated into the 

development as well and an evacuation plan, as it still stands the development will be in 

flood zone 3 going of our flood map for planning map. They can challenge the flood map for 

planning flood zones if they wanted too. Flood resistance and resilience - advice to 

LPA/applicant: We strongly recommend the use of flood resistance and resilience 

measures. Physical barriers, raised electrical fittings and special construction materials are 

just some of the ways you can help reduce flood damage. 

 

7.4 Highways – No objection subject to conditions relating to a construction management plan 

and debris on highway. 

Page 13



 

7.5 Neighbour notification (expired 29.11.2024) and site notice (expired 02.12.2024) – No 

responses received.  

 

8.0 ENVIRONMENT IMPACT ASSESSMENT (EIA) 

 

8.1. The development proposed does not fall within Schedule 1 or 2 of the Environmental Impact 

Assessment Regulations 2017 (as amended). No Environment Statement is therefore 

required. 

 

9.0   MAIN ISSUES 

 

9.1. The key considerations in the assessment of this application are: 

- Principle of development  

- Design 

- Highways 

- Flood risk and drainage 

- Biodiversity net gain 

10.0 ASSESSMENT  

 

 Principle of development 

 

10.1 Local Plan policy S5 defines the built form as: 

 

“…the closely grouped and visually well related buildings of the main part of the settlement 

and land closely associated with them. The built form excludes: 

a. any individual building or group of dispersed buildings or ribbon developments which are 

clearly detached from the main part of the settlement; 

b. any ribbon development attached to the main part of the settlement where the buildings 

relate more to the surrounding countryside than to the main part of the settlement; 

c. gardens, paddocks and other undeveloped land on the edge of the settlement where this 

land relates more to the surrounding countryside than to the main part of the settlement; 

d. agricultural buildings on the edge of the settlement; and 

e. outdoor sports and recreational spaces on the edge of the settlement.” 

 

10.2 Local Plan Policy E7 (Hambleton's Landscapes) states that the Council will protect and 

enhance the distinctive landscapes of the District by supporting proposals where (amongst 

other less relevant considerations) it:   

 

- conserves and, where possible, enhances any natural or historic landscape features that 

are identified as contributing to the character of the local area; (criterion b.); and  

 

- protects the landscape setting of individual settlements, helping to maintain their distinct 

character and separate identity (criterion e.) 

Page 14



 

10.3 Policy E1 (Design) states that all development should be high quality…. integrating 

successfully with its surroundings in terms of form and function… reinforcing local 

distinctiveness and…a strong sense of place. As such, development will be supported 

where the design is in accordance with the relevant requirements of Policy E1 (amongst 

other less relevant considerations):  

 

- Responding positively to its context…drawing key characteristics from its surroundings, 

including natural, historic and built environment to help create distinctive, high quality and 

well-designed places (criterion a.);   

 

-   Respects and contributes positively to local character, identity and distinctiveness in 

terms of form, scale, layout, height, density, visual appearance/relationships, views/vistas, 

materials and native planting/landscaping (criterion b.); 

 

-  Achieves a satisfactory relationship with adjacent development and does not have an 

unacceptable impact on the amenities or safety of future occupiers, for users and occupiers 

of neighbouring land and buildings or the wider area or creating other environmental or 

safety concerns (criterion c.); 

 

For residential extensions and ancillary development: 

 

- The proposal respects the scale, massing and materials of the original dwelling and will 

not cause unacceptable harm to its character (criterion l.); 

 

- There is no unacceptable harm caused to the character or appearance of the 

surrounding area or to the residential amenity of homes nearby (criterion m.); 

 

- In the case of a detached residential annex, the annex is within the curtilage of the main 

dwelling, visually subordinate to the main dwelling, sited to ensure a clear functional link 

between the annexe and main dwelling and shares the same access, parking and 

garden areas. The Council may impose conditions on an annexe to ensure the annexe 

remains used for its intended purpose (criterion p.). 

 

10.4 The application site is not considered to be a gap site within the built form of the village 

despite the ongoing construction of the dwelling to the east of the watercourse. Local Plan 

policy S5 provides exclusions from the built form and it is considered the development to 

the east of the watercourse is clearly detached from the main part of the settlement through 

the remaining land on both sides of the watercourse (the application site and extent of 

undeveloped area associated with new dwelling under construction on the north side of the 

highway) together with the playground and agricultural land on the south side of the 

highway.   This context clearly demonstrates views to the north and south from the highway 

around the watercourse to the countryside beyond are possible and the application site 

better relates to the surrounding countryside rather than the built form of the village.  

Therefore, in accordance with Local Plan policy S5 the proposal is not considered to be 

within the built form and should not be considered as infill development. Furthermore, it is 

Page 15



 

considered that retaining the extent of existing curtilage as undeveloped garden area would 

not be inappropriate.  Large garden areas are often found to the side of properties across 

the district.  In this instance the garden forms part of the transition to the countryside 

beyond and affords views to the north from the public highway.  On this basis it contributes 

to the openness of the area and it is not considered acceptable to develop the application 

site in the manner proposed. 

 

10.5 The application site has been assessed by the Local Planning Authority in two previous 

planning applications as being of importance to the character and appearance of the 

settlement through the openness that contributes positively to the character and visual 

amenity of this part of the village.  This openness has been eroded by the ongoing 

construction of the residential development on the east side of the beck.  This in the view of 

officers enhances the importance of the break in development on the application site which 

would be lost as a result of the proposal.  It is noted that the development under 

construction to the east sits c.20m away from the watercourse and is c.8m away from the 

highway to provide a significant gap within the streetscene. In contrast, the application 

proposal would sit c.4m away from the watercourse and would be c.5m away from the 

highway.  As noted above there is distinct sense of openness in all directions around the 

watercourse.  It is considered that the application site contributes to this openness and the 

proposals presented would erode its quality and function.   

 

10.6 On the basis of the above the proposals would not respond positively to its context and 

would not contribute positively to local character.  It would not conserve the natural features 

that contributes to the character of the local area and would not protect the landscape 

setting of this part of Well. The proposals therefore fail the requirements of Local Plan 

policies E1 parts (a), (b) and (c) and E7 parts b) and e). 

 

Design 

 

10.7 The planning history of the appeal site notes that a previous proposal for a c.250sqm in 

footprint single storey domestic covered storage building was refused planning permission 

ref. no.  20/00906/FUL and a second proposal was also refused planning permission for a 

c.450 sqm of floorspace, with c.225 sqm at ground floor and c.225 sqm above (ref no. 

ZB24/00627/FUL).  In addition, a garage structure, located to the rear of the dwelling was 

approved (ref no. 19/01218/FUL) and this provided c.74 sqm at ground floor for garaging 

with c.51 sqm above for a games room to provide a total of c.125 sqm of floorspace.  The 

garage was subsequently approved for conversion to a holiday let (ref no. 21/02806/FUL). 

 

10.8 The quantum of floorspace proposed (c.260 sqm gross internal area) is not considered to 

be ancillary to the host dwelling (c.358 sqm according to CIL register) and would therefore 

not provide any degree of subservience in this regard.  It is also noted that the first-floor 

office of c.52 sqm and c.77 sqm games/gym room are considered to be excessive floor 

areas for ancillary accommodation given the context and relationship to the host dwelling. 

10.9 Nevertheless, it is noted that following the implementation of the garage to holiday let 

permission, it is possible that replacement garaging of at least two bays may be required at 

Page 16



 

the site.  The revised proposals provide three bays for vehicles and domestic storage and 

this is considered acceptable in principle for a five-bedroom dwelling.  What is unclear and 

not justified is a further two bays are shown on the submitted plans for use as storage for 

builders plant/tools.  No clarification has been provided by the applicant on this matter.    

 

10.10 It is also important to note that the existing dwelling is a large 5-bedroom dwelling that 

includes a c.12 sqm ground floor study.  The applicant has provided clarification that the 

ground floor study within the existing dwelling is not used for that purpose and instead is 

used as a family shared space whereas the proposed home office within the proposed 

outbuilding would provide a dedicated working area separate from the main house.  

However, no clarification has been provided as to where the current home office operates 

within the dwelling and the size of the room involved or indeed if any home working 

currently exists.  Nevertheless, the provision of a home office is not uncommon, but it is 

considered that the size proposed is excessive. The submitted justification states that the 

proposed office would enable the applicant and his wife (when required) to work whilst also 

facilitating the storage of documents and records associated with the applicant’s business 

in the building trade.  It also noted that given that the first-floor accommodation is provided 

as a half storey within the roof space, the total usable floor space reduces to c.43 sqm 

where the headroom is below 1.5m in height.  However, this does not restrict the use of the 

space below for 1.5m in height as storage space for cabinets and drawers. Even with the 

reduced floor space of c.43 sqm this clearly is a significant home office space for two users 

and therefore two desks with the associated storage of documentation. 

 

10.11 With regard to the games room and gym the applicant has acknowledged this element as  

‘desirable’ rather than ‘essential’ but considered the space to be reasonably proportioned in 

the context of the scale of the host property.  The proposed space would be c77 sqm in 

total and reduced to c.64 sqm where the headroom is below 1.5m in height.  Again, the 

quantum of space is considered to be excessive and is not justified with any specific details 

for gym equipment or requirements for the games room. 

 

10.12 Officers consider the siting and design approach to be ill-considered, with no analysis of 

similar building types within the village or wider area provided within the drawings or 

documentation submitted with the application.  The position of the range on the extreme 

extent of the curtilage provides a structure that poorly relates to the host dwelling.  It is 

separated from the dwelling by c.28m and would result in the formalisation of a large 

hardstanding area to allow for vehicle access to the garaging.  In addition, the structure 

does not sit on the edge of the carriageway or highway verge as one would expect.  The 

range would be positioned behind the existing hedge line which is angled to accommodate 

the visibility splay to the access point to the west.  The arbitrary siting and alignment behind 

a hedge results in a poor relationship to the streetscene that would not be reflective of a 

traditional design approach for such structures because the building line of the structure 

would form the enclosure. 

 

10.13 The scale, form, design and appearance of the proposed ancillary building is not 

considered to be acceptable. The design approach to provide a single range with a 

Page 17



 

traditional design approach and materials is noted.  However, and in a similar manner to the 

previously refused application, the proposed approach to the siting, orientation and 

relationship to the street together with the elevation design does not sit comfortably on the 

site or within the wider context and therefore would appear incongruous.  In this instance, 

officers presume the intention is to provide an agricultural “barn-like” structure as a direct 

cross-reference to a traditional farmhouse with an adjacent complex of outbuildings. 

However, no analysis of vernacular farm buildings within this part of North Yorkshire has 

been provided to demonstrate how the proposals reflect local characteristics in terms of 

siting, design or appearance.  Officers consider the intention is to provide a ‘granary’ type 

range with bays at ground floor with accommodation above.  However, the proposed range 

would be 20m in length and this is not considered to be reflective of traditional ranges. 

Whilst it is noted that the eaves and ridge height of the proposed ancillary building would be 

lower than that of the host dwelling, the resultant massing would not appear to be 

subservient and would provide an over-bearing and incongruous element in this location.   

 

10.14  Whilst the approach to provide cart-openings is noted, the style of the openings is not 

reflective of a traditional design approach in this part of the county.  Traditionally, the 

openings would be defined by piers rather than the plane of the façade as proposed.  

Furthermore, the presentation of a facade with five equally proportioned openings is not 

reflective of a traditional design approach as suggested and would appear incongruous.   

Nevertheless, the external steps are acknowledged as a typical design feature albeit with 

railings to comply with current regulations.   Furthermore, the use of rooflights close to the 

eaves level present a non-traditional design approach and are not considered to be an 

appropriate design response. 

 

10.15 On the basis of the above the proposal is considered to fail the requirements of Local Plan 

policy E1 parts (a), (b), (c), (l), (m) and (p). 

 

Highways 

 

10.16 Local Plan policy IC2 notes that the Council will work with other authorities and transport 

providers to secure a safe and efficient transport system that supports a sustainable pattern 

of development that is accessible to all. Proposals will only be supported where it is 

demonstrated compliance with a number of criteria.  Of relevance to this proposal are: 

 

- Development located where the highway network can satisfactorily accommodate, taking 

account of planned improvements, the traffic generated by the development (criterion a.); 

- Highway safety would not be compromised, and safe physical access can be provided to 

the proposed development from the footpath and highway networks (criterion e.); 

- Appropriate provision for parking is incorporated (criterion g.).  

 

10.17 The Highways team has been consulted and raise no concern given the existing entrance 

point, subject to conditions relating to a construction management plan and debris on the 

highway.  On this basis the proposal is considered to satisfy Local Plan policy IC2 relating 

to highways. 

Page 18



 

Flood risk and Drainage 

 

10.18 Local Plan policy RM2 notes the Council will manage and mitigate flood risk by: 

 

“a. Avoiding development in flood risk areas, where possible, by applying the sequential 

test 

and where necessary applying the exception test in accordance with national policy. 

b. Protecting areas of functional floodplain as shown on the Strategic Flood Risk 

Assessment, 

from development, except for water compatible uses and essential infrastructure. 

c. Requiring flood risk to be considered for all development commensurate with the scale 

and 

impact of the proposed development and mitigated where appropriate. 

d. Reducing the speed and volume of surface water run off as part of new build 

developments. 

e. Making space for flood water in high risk areas. 

f. Reducing the residual risks within areas of rapid inundation. 

g. Encouraging the removal of existing culverting where practicable and appropriate. 

h. Supporting development and management of flood alleviation schemes.” 

 

10.19 The application site is located in floodzone 3 and the applicant has provided a flood risk 

assessment that notes that while the site is located the floozone 3, the updated hydraulic 

modelling that uses local topographical survey data demonstrates a lower risk and is 

located within flood zone 1. With regard to surface water flooding the site is at a medium- 

low risk and it is considered that if the surveyed ground levels were taken into account, 

there would be a similar reduction in flood risk as shown by the fluvial modelling. Surface 

water accumulation is expected to occur in lower land to the north.  The Environment 

Agency has been consulted on the application, and they note that the proposal is 

acceptable subject to compliance with submitted flood risk assessment and advise that 

flood proofing measures are incorporated into the development as well as an evacuation 

plan.  On this basis and the proposal is considered to satisfy the requirements of Local Plan 

policy RM2. 

 

10.20 It is noted that application ref no. 20/00906/FUL included impact on the approved water 

attenuation measures within the current application area as a reason for refusal.  However, 

this is no longer the case because a subsequent approval of a discharge of condition 

application (ref no. 16/02527/DCN) provided a soakaway solution in a different location.  

Therefore, this is no longer a constraint within the redline boundary of the application area.  

It is considered that foul and surface water could be accommodated within the existing 

operational system at the complex, but this can be controlled via condition to secure 

satisfactory drainage for the new structure.  

 

Biodiversity net gain 

Page 19



 

10.21 This is a householder application and is therefore exempt from the requirements of 

biodiversity net gain in accordance with The Biodiversity Gain Requirements (Exemptions) 

Regulations 2024. 

 

11.0 PLANNING BALANCE AND CONCLUSION 

 

11.1 The proposal for development in this location is not acceptable in principle and therefore 

does not comply with the relevant Local Plan policy in terms of principle or design and is not 

otherwise in accordance with local and national policy requirements. 

12.0 RECOMMENDATION  
  
12.1 That Planning Permission be Refused for the reasons set out below:  
 

1. The development of the application site would result in the loss of openness and visual 
amenity that is considered important to the character and appearance of this part of the 
village and would therefore fail the requirements of Local Plan policies E1 parts (a), (b) and 
(c) and E7 parts (b) and (e). 
 

2. The quantum of floorspace proposed together with the siting, scale, form and appearance of 
the building would appear incongruous within the context and would therefore fail the 
requirements of Local Plan policy E1 parts (a), (b), (c), (l), (m) and (p).    

 

Target Determination Date: 18th December 2024 (EoT agreed to 17th January 2025 ) 

 

Case Officer: Marc Pearson marc.pearson@northyorks.gov.uk 

 

 

Page 20

mailto:marc.pearson@northyorks.gov.uk


 

 NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

RICHMOND (YORKS) AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE   
SUPPLEMENTARY TO COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 
15 January 2025 

 

Agenda 
Item 

Application 
number and 

Division 

Respondent  

4  ZB24/02074/FUL  
Bedale 

Officer 
Comments 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Para 6.4 should state NPPF Dec 2024 
 
Section 10 – Assessment 
 
Should include a reference to paragraph 135 of the NPPF relating to design: 
 
“Planning policies and decisions should ensure that developments: 
a) will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short term 
but over the lifetime of the development; 
b) are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and 
effective landscaping; 
c) are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built 
environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging appropriate 
innovation or change (such as increased densities); 
d) establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of streets, 
spaces, building types and materials to create attractive, welcoming and distinctive 
places to live, work and visit; 
e) optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate 
amount and mix of development (including green and other public space) and support 
local facilities and transport networks; and 

f) create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health and 
well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users51; and where 
crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality of life or 
community cohesion and resilience.” 

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 4a



 

 NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Paragraph 10.6 - end of final sentence to include reference to the NPPF: 
 
“..and paragraph 135 parts a), b) and c) of the NPPF Dec 2024.” 
 
 
Paragraph 10.15 - end of final sentence to include reference to the NPPF: 
 
“..and paragraph 135 parts a), b) and c) of the NPPF Dec 2024.” 
 
 
Section 12 – Recommendation. 
 
 
Reason for refusal no. 1 end of sentence to include reference to the NPPF: 
 
 
“..and paragraph 135 parts a), b) and c) of the NPPF Dec 2024.” 
 
Reason for refusal no. 2 end of sentence to include reference to the NPPF: 
 
 
“..and paragraph 135 parts a), b) and c) of the NPPF Dec 2024.” 
 
 
 
 
 
Paragraph 10.19 - Point of clarification: 
 
The Environment Agency has not formally amended the flood zone status from 3 to 1. 
However, it acknowledges that the submitted Flood Risk Assessment demonstrates 

P
age 22



 

 NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Parish Council 

through hydraulic modelling the site would be located within the flood zone 1 and is 
therefore not at risk of flooding from rivers.  
 
Furthermore, given the application is for householder development there is no 
requirement for sequential test as stated in paragraph 176 and footnote 62 of the 
NPPF Dec 2024. 
 
 
Email correspondence form the Chair of Well Parish Council who attended the 
committee site visit 14.1.2024.  The Chair was asked to email the views of the PC 
about the proposed development: 
  
“The current situation on the site, where the landowner uses shipping containers for 
storage, does create a poor visual impact from the road.   Therefore the parish council 
does not oppose the proposed development.” 
 
 
 

 

 

P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes for the Meeting held on 12 December 2024
	Minutes

	4 ZB24/02074/FUL - Planning application for the construction of garaging with first floor office/games room/gym accommodation within the curtilage of a dwelling named May-Zac located at the eastern end of Well on the north side of Church Street.
	4a Update report for agenda item 4 - Well

